
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 19, 2017 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Waldemar Serrano of Remnant Christian Center.  
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting June 21, 2017. 
 
AGENDA REVIEW 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
Presentations: 

1. Presentation of checks through the Guns & Hoses Basketball Competition to  
Nikki McGuire of N.A.O.M.I. Kids & Danyiel Yarbrough of New Journey Youth Center.  Chief McKinley  

2. Presentation of trophy to Officer Robert Campbell and APD Walk Like MADD Team.  Chief McKinley 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Award a contract for the installation of reclaimed water main pipe along Ocoee-Apopka Rd.  
2. Award a contract for the purchase of ductile iron pipe and fittings for the reclaimed water main along Ocoee-Apopka Rd. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Authorize an agreement for the processing & marketing of Apopka curbside recycling material.  Jay Davoll 
2. Approve emergency repairs to the Water Reclamation Facility North Clarifier.  Jay Davoll 
3. Approve the Emergency Roof Replacement of the Fire Administration/Fire Station #1 Facility.  Jay Davoll 
4. Contingent mediated settlement agreement for Richard D. Anderson.  Attorney Cliff Shepard 
5. Apopka Comprehensive Plan - 2017 Evaluation & Appraisal Report (EAR) David Moon 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2525 - Insubstantial Change to PUD Development Condition D.4. – Apopka Holdings, LLC David Moon 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 

  

1



  
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

July 20, 2017  3:00pm – 6:00pm  Budget Workshop 

July 25, 2017 6:00pm –  Planning Commission Special Meeting – Errol Estates 

August 2, 2017 1:30pm –  Council Meeting 

August 3, 2017 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

August 8, 2017 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

August 11, 2017 3:00pm – 5:00pm Back to School Bash – Lake Avenue Park 

August 14, 2017 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

August 16, 2017 7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

August 19, 2017  9:00am – 12:00pm PlayBall with MLB – Alonzo Williams Park  

August 22, 2017 5:30pm –  Council Special Meeting – Errol Estates 

August 28, 2017 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council regular meeting June 21, 2017. 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017, at 7:30 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Steve Hudak, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

    WFTV News 

    WESH News 

    FOX News 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor John Fisher, First United Methodist 

Church of Apopka, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on June 17, 1885, the Statue of Liberty 

arrived by ship at Bedloe Island in New York Harbor. The statue was designed by Frenchman 

Frédéric Auguste Bartholdi and Gustave Eiffel and it was a gift to the people of America from the 

people of France to commemorate the 100th Anniversary of the Declaration of Independence. The 

copper and iron structure, which arrived in more than 350 pieces, was reassembled and dedicated 

in 1886, where she stood watch over more than 12 million immigrants that entered America 

through Ellis Island. Lady Liberty became a symbol of America as a land of freedom and 

opportunity. He asked everyone to reflect upon the America ideas of freedom, hope, and 

opportunity that Lady Liberty represents as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

AGENDA REVIEW:  Mr. Irby announced there was an item to add under Business for a street 

closure of Shirley Drive for a Street Party. 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Public Comment: 

 

Ross Duke said his reason for being here is that he is the client service manager for Redflex Traffic 

Systems. He recommended to Council that the City go out to RFP to allow the evaluation of new 

technology and also to make sure they are getting the best price for the program. 

 

David Leavitt said he lives in Longwood, however, he has businesses throughout Central Florida, 

including Apopka. He stated Council will hear today from proponents of red light cameras 

statistics and data based on flawed and biased information that most likely can be traced back to 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 2 

 

the camera vendor. He said ATS employees and several lobbyists make a living spreading biased 

information in Tallahassee and beyond. He declared Seminole County did not have any red light 

cameras. He owns a company that employees 80 people and has a fleet of 20 vehicles who have 

the unpleasant and unsafe need to drive through communities with red light cameras like Apopka. 

He stated they have a company policy warning drivers in their business to be careful of rear end 

collisions while driving through cities like Apopka. He asked that prior to approving this renewal 

that all seven police chiefs in Seminole County be polled, as well as the Seminole County Sherriff. 

He said out of 477 jurisdictions in Florida that have the opportunity to have red light cameras, only 

59 jurisdictions have them.  

 

Glen Chancy said when he and some other activists first became interested they founded “Ban the 

Cams” in 2010. They drafted a study along with some additional friends that looked at the City of 

Apopka’s program and catalogued a number of statistics and talked about how red light cameras 

tend to increase rear end collisions and how they really are not a safety issue. He stated this was 

all put into a report and circulated. He said there were two pitches made regarding red light 

cameras, one by the Astroturf organizations set up and maintained by the red light camera 

companies that pretend to be public safety specialists and public servants that echo that pitch, then 

there is the other pitch about the money. He stated there has been evidence that these are not very 

lucrative programs for the sponsoring jurisdictions. He also agreed it would be a good idea to do 

an RFP. He declared this was not about safety and it never has been. He said it was an additional 

tax on motorists and works by manipulating yellow light times, creating unsafe conditions so to 

write more tickets to pay the high costs of these programs. He declared the city did not need the 

program.  

 

Aaron Drummond said he has been a resident for over 10 years and this was the first time he has 

ever been in the Council Chamber. He stated he has never received a ticket from the red light 

cameras, but he has been in a rear end accident at a light in Apopka, stating his wife still sees a 

chiropractor as a result. He said he has researched red light cameras online and it seems to be a 

common theme of increased rear end collisions. He stated he did not see this as a safety issue and 

felt it was about revenue generation. He has had people tell him that they do not want to come to 

Apopka because of the red light cameras. He said this was not the reputation we want and urged 

that they get rid of the red light cameras. 

 

Edward Wagner said the red light cameras have nothing to do with liberty and that is the principle 

our country was founded upon. He stated these cameras were not even made from this state and 

are brought in and calibrated from another state. He said it takes more officials to look at the 

cameras, calibrate them, and look at everything that goes on with it, then deny justice to the people, 

deny due process, and deny the right to face your accusers. He said Florida came close last year to 

have red light cameras outlawed and many states have already outlawed them. He said this was 

madness and needed to stop. He declared these cameras were anti-American.  

 

Wayne Jackman said he did not live in Apopka, but he has been in Orange County since 1975, a 

graduate from Evans and UCF. He said he is employed here and pays taxes to the county, gas taxes 

on the federal, state, and county levels, stating these get funneled through here. He said red light 

cameras are going to be on major roads and if his vehicle comes through Apopka, whether he is 

driving or not, he would receive a ticket demanding a fine. He stated these red light cameras are 

Darth Vader, they are judge, jury, and executioner. He stated they are a witness that takes no oath 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 3 

 

and cannot be cross examined which is against everything a defendant is allowed to have in court. 

He said the people here that came to oppose these are members of the republic who stand against 

tyranny.  

 

Randy Wiseman said he lives in Mount Dora and he is here as one of the representatives of the 

Libertarian Party and said he is a candidate for governor for that party. He stated he has a big 

concern with our personal liberties and how they are being handled. He said he recognized 

specifically the City Council is the governing body of this City and that is the way it should be. 

They should be making the decisions they feel are best for the City and he recognizes and respects 

that. He stated he thinks the red light cameras impose on our personal liberties to the degree we do 

not have our day in court. He said the people of Apopka and the people who drive through the city 

have the right, and Council owes them the respect to allow them to be face to face policed. He 

stated someone getting a ticket from one of the officers will consider not doing this again, and red 

light cameras do not do that. He commended the City Council and said he knew they would do the 

right thing based on their consciences.  

 

Robert Webster said he has served as a judicial officer and has strong feelings about the 

Constitution and Bill of Rights. He said there is no law he has ever read that has come as close to 

being illegal as the red light camera law.  He said the red light cameras violate every covenant and 

law in our republic. He spoke of the traffic that lines up on Welch Road to turn right onto Rock 

Springs Road because of the red light camera. He suggested the City Council vote adamantly under 

no condition that red light cameras be used.  

 

Derek Ryan said he lives in Apopka and two members of his family have served as Mayor in the 

1930’s, and he stated LeRoy Gilliam was his grandfather. He stated he is the chairman of the 

Libertarian Party of Orange County and they were actively recruiting candidates. He stated he 

works in sales and drives a lot of miles each year having his share of red light cameras. He said 

there have been a lot of quality arguments against the red light cameras and believes Council will 

do the right thing and get the cameras out.  

 

Henry Bentley said he lives in Apopka and a lot has been said about the red light cameras. He said 

he has noticed the City of Apopka has shortened the length of the yellow lights and asked why. He 

stated while the time was lengthened there were less accidents.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the Department of Transportation sent a letter warning the City of 

Apopka that the yellow light times had to be restored to the prescribed length.  He further explained 

these are regulated by the Department of Transportation. 

 

Mark Schmidter said he is resident of Orange County and frequently drives through Apopka. He 

declared by supporting this, the Commission was violating their oath of office to the Constitution 

of the United States. He said he wanted justice for his grandchildren and stated the only way to 

fight it is under federal civil rights, violating their oath of office, which is a $250,000 fine and is 

not covered under any insurance policy.  

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize the disposal of surplus equipment/property. 

 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 4 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to approve 

one item on the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Authorize the Renewal Agreement with American Traffic Solutions for the Intersection 

Safety Program. 

Captain Fernandez provided an overview, stating there is some misinformation out regarding 

how the camera program actually works. In 2007, the City of Apopka was one of the first cities 

in Florida to put a program like this in place. He stated from 2007 to 2010, it was a local 

program under a local ordinance. In 2010, the Mark Wandall Act was written bringing 

intersection safety camera programs under the umbrella of the Florida Legislature and how 

they are managed. At that time our program was modified to meet those standards. The Mark 

Wandall Act was updated in 2013, and the legislature put in place alternative procedures for 

challenging the notices of violation, insuring a local due process. He advised a formal RFP 

process was done in 2007 and since that time American Traffic Solutions (ATS) was chosen 

as the vendor and they have been our vendor for the last ten years. He explained the City of 

Apopka traffic specialists and police officers review these violations for accuracy and 

consistency prior to a notice being issued. He reviewed several videos of violations pointing 

out the date and time, and amber phase time are listed on the photographs and videos, as well 

as the speed limit. He explained the amber phase time is set by FDOT based upon the speed 

limit. He said the goal of red light cameras is to change the behavior of drivers. He showed a 

video of a story by Channel 9 News on the complaint of red light cameras causing rear end 

crashes and that yellow lights are shortened to increase ticket revenues.  They reported the 

State sets required minimums for yellow light times, as well as reporting that on the rare 

occasion it does not meet the State standard, the violation is thrown out. The yellow lights that 

were surveyed met FDOT standards set for the yellow light time. They reported their 

investigation revealed that rear end crashes went down where red light cameras were installed, 

as well as a big reduction in T-bone crashes. The investigation proved that drivers are changing 

their habits. Captain Fernandez reported that most people who receive a red light camera 

violation do not receive a second violation, showing that this does result in habit change. He 

discussed right hand turns on red and said out of 11,000 notices of violations on right hand 

turns, more than 10,000 of the violations reviewed were dismissed. He reiterated they were 

looking to modify behavior.  

 

Commissioner Becker thanked Captain Fernandez and Chief McKinley for the additional 

information provided. He said he does not support anyone that runs red lights. He stated he 

fully supports the laws in place, stating the point of the program is really about reducing the 

amount of violations. He went on to reference information provided on the Intersection Safety 

Program questioning some of the numbers and statistics provided. 

 

Commissioner Velazquez expressed concern regarding the City having 21 cameras. She 

suggested an evaluation of the number of cameras needed and added that they remain at the 

busiest intersections and providing safety for pedestrians.  

 

Captain Fernandez said the contract was not per camera and they could look at all intersections 

to determine if any could be removed. He advised there were 10 intersections that utilized the 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 5 

 

21 cameras.  

 

Commissioner Dean inquired as to the revenue/expenses reporting the collection of $3,713,657 

from October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. Out of this amount $965,706 was city 

revenue. He inquired how the company received their revenue, to which Captain Fernandez 

explained this was a fully funded program funded by the violators. 

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson inquiring to the legal aspect of surveillance, City 

Attorney Shepard advised the court has looked at all aspects and legal involvement of all 

aspects regarding this type of surveillance. He stated these cameras are public, on public roads.  

He stated one of the protections built into the law allows for the owner of the vehicle to file 

and affidavit stating who had the vehicle at the time.  

 

Erin DeYoung, Attorney for the Apopka Police Department, added a judge will look at the 

affidavit and it is filled out appropriately, the red light camera ticket is automatically dismissed 

by the court and is reassigned to the person that was driving the vehicle. She stated the courts 

have decided with red light camera tickets, you have the ability and right to cross examine the 

officer and make any objections to the video. She affirmed cases are often prosecuted based 

on surveillance video.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve the renewal agreement with American Traffic Solutions for the intersection 

safety program with the caveat to renegotiate if 21 cameras are needed. Motion carried 

three/two with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez, and Bankson voting 

aye and Commissioners Dean and Becker voting nay. 

 

Council recessed at 9:24 p.m. and reconvened at 9:35 p.m. 

 

2. 5th Street Parking Lot sale by the Downtown Parking Association to the Community 

Redevelopment Agency (CRA). 

James Hitt, Community Development Director, said the Fifth Street parking lot was owned by 

15 entities, five shares of which are the City of Apopka. He stated there is an opportunity to 

continue the CRA Plan and in order to get this property under the CRA ownership, this property 

needs to be sold. In order to do this, the City of Apopka needs to give up their shares to the 

Downtown Parking Association. The Downtown Parking Association will in turn sell the 

property to the CRA.   

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this authorizes Mr. Irby to cast our votes tomorrow in favor of the 

sale.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Velazquez to approve authorizing 

the Fifth Street parking lot sell by the Downtown Parking Lot Association. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Budget Items for FY 2017 in accordance with the CRA Redevelopment Plan 2017 - 

Update. 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 6 

 

Mr. Hitt said these budget items were covered during the CRA meeting and they are a 

continuation of the CRA Plan and were approved at the CRA meeting just prior to this Council 

meeting. The City Council also needs to approve these budget items. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to approve 

the budget items for FY 2017 in accordance with the CRA Redevelopment Plan 2017 

Update.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Final Development Plan – Lake Lucie Equestrian Trail Head – 43 Rainey Road. 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the Clerk.  

 

Pam Richmond, Senior Planner, reviewed the Trail Head for the Lake Lucie Equestrian project 

and reviewed the location. Overall the site is 166 acres and the trail head sits on 50,000 square 

feet to the east side of Rainey Road. She said the trash receptacle will be maintained by Orange 

County Recreation. Crushed concrete will be used for the parking surface, with the exception 

of the handicap spaces that will be paved. She pointed out there is a current trail being used 

and this is the path it will take.  She advised the landscape plan meets the Land Development 

Code. She advised this site plan was laid out with great care to limit the number of tree removal 

and preserve the natural environment. The Planning Commission recommends approval of the 

Final Development Plan.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve the Final Development Plan for the Lake Lucie Equestrian Trail Head. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Request for Street Closure for Street Party. 

Mr. Irby said a resident on Shirley Drive in the cul-de-sac has requested to hold a block party 

closing the cul-de-sac. The City has requested a letter from all property owners affected stating 

they are aware of the closure and have no objection, as well as a certificate of insurance from 

the HOA listing the City as an additionally insured for the event. He advised the barricades 

need to be easily removed should the need arise for an emergency vehicle to enter the area. 

Staff recommends approval.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to 

approve the street closure of Shirley Drive for a Street Party provided they satisfy the 

conditions as presented. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2569 – Second Reading – Temporary Moratorium – Medical Cannabis 

Dispensing. - The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2569 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 7 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AN EXTENSION OF THE 

TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE DISPENSING OF MEDICAL 

CANNABIS WITHIN THE CITY OF APOPKA UNTIL AUGUST 30, 2017; 

PROHIBITING ANY AND ALL DISPENSING OF MEDICAL CANNABIS 

DURING THE MORATORIUM PERIOD FOR ANY PROPERTY WITHIN 

THE CITY OF APOPKA; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING 

DEFINITIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2569. Motion carried four/one with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, and Bankson voting aye and Commissioner Becker 

voting nay. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2570 – Second Reading – Annexation – 2255 & 2267 West Kelly Park 

Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2570 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY MYUNG SOO HAN & KATHERINE HAN LOCATED AT 

2255 & 2267 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2570. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2571 – Second Reading – Annexation – 2309 West Kelly Park Road. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2571 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 8 

 

OWNED BY CHOE BONG JIN AND CHONG SOON LOCATED AT 2309 

WEST KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one else wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2571. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2572 – Second Reading – Annexation – 2405 West Kelly Park Road. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2572 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY LEE WON CHUL & MUONG SEA LOCATED AT 2405 WEST 
KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one else wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2572. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2573 – Second Reading – Annexation – 4650 Jason Dwelley Parkway. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2573 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY GEORGE W. THUM, JR. LOCATED AT 4650 JASON 
DWELLEY PARKWAY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one else wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 9 

 

Ordinance No. 2573. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2574 – Second Reading – Annexation – 355 West Orange Blossom Trail. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2574 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY BIBUBOO, LLC LOCATED AT 355 WEST ORANGE 
BLOSSOM TRAIL; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one else wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2574. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2575 – Second Reading – Annexation – 3606 Fudge Road. The City Clerk 

read the title as follows. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2575 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY CHARLES AND BETTY BROWN LOCATED AT 3606 
FUDGE ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one else wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2575. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2576 – Second Reading – LDC Amendment – Kelly Park Interchange 

Mixed Use Zoning District. The City Clerk read the title as follows. 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2576 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 10 

 
THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II – “LAND USE TYPE, DENSITY, 
INTENSITY” TO CREATE A NEW SECTION 2.02.21 ENTITLED “KELLY 
PARK INTERCHANGE MIXED USE DISTRICT;” PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK; SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS; 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Jim Hall, VHB, said the City Council and City staff are to be commended on the work that has 

gone into this, stating they have approached it in the right way, requiring a Form-Based Code 

to control the form of development and place making. He stated this ordinance establishes the 

mixed-use zoning district, and one part of this ordinance states they will also adopt some design 

guidelines, which were written several years ago and were citywide. He said there were many 

inconsistencies between the Design Guidelines and Form-Based Code. He said the Form-Based 

Code was very well written. The one issue they have with this mixed-use zoning district is that 

it makes it mandatory and causes many elevated areas. He declared his only objection is the 

inclusion of the word “mandatory” stating if the Design Guidelines are left as they were, they 

would be good, and then the Form-Based Code would cover everything you would have to do 

in developing the Kelly Park Interchange Vision Plan. 

 

Pat Tyjeski, Senior Planner, S&ME, advised this was mandatory only if you do mixed use. She 

said residential development is subject to those design standards just like anybody else in the 

City. She stated if you do a mixed use outside the Form-Based Code area, then those standards 

would be mandatory. She advised the design standards can be updated at any time in the future. 

 

David Moon advised the City was currently undergoing a major rewrite of the Land 

Development Code (LDC) and the guidelines will be merged into the body of the LDC. He said 

a lot of the inconsistencies will be eliminated with this update. 

 

Mr. Hall said if this is not affecting his clients, Bridle Path and Orlando Beltway, he will waive 

his objection.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2576. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2577 – Second Reading – LDC Amendment – Kelly Park Crossing Form-

Based Code. The City Clerk read the title as follows. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2577 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE III – “OVERLAY ZONES” TO 
CREATE A NEW SECTION 3.06.00 ENTITLED “KELLY PARK 

13



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 11 

 
CROSSING FORM-BASED CODE;” PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 
THE CITY CLERK; SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS; AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

James Hitt, Community Development Director, said over the last few weeks they have met with 

some of the developers and staff has significantly reviewed the Form-Based Code. As a result, 

there is a list of edited items included in the packet for minor changes made.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Jeff Welch, Rochelle Holdings, complimented Ms. Tyjeski and the city staff for the hard work 

put into this. He said this is a document that will need to be tweaked as opportunities with end 

users come. He stated as known, the Department of Economic Opportunity required adoption 

of some level of Form-Based Code for any of the projects to move forward.  He said he would 

like to see this adopted tonight in order to move forward with a lot of great opportunities in 

Apopka.  

 

Jim Hall said they met extensively with staff over the neighborhood district and some of the 

residential areas. He stated there was great repartee back and forth and the amendments made 

to the Form-Based Code are right on. He declared they want to see this be the most successful 

project seen in Apopka and for this area to take off and be a great success for the overall 

community. He stated for the Orlando Beltway that has some of the nonresidential land, when 

the issue comes up that you want to be urban, then you are talking about streets with curb and 

gutter and buildings are closer to the street. In the current instance there are rural road sections, 

and he suggested they start to consider how these roads will transform from a rural road to 

ultimately an urban road and how this will be funded.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2577. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

10. Resolution No. 2017-10 – Community Redevelopment Agency’s CRA Redevelopment 

Plan 2017 - Update. The City Clerk read the title as follows. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING A COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOCATED IN 
THE CITY OF APOPKA; MAKING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Hitt advised this was the same plan as discussed during the CRA meeting and there have 

been no changes.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one else wishing to speak, he 

14



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council regular meeting held on June 21, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 12 

 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Resolution No. 2017-10. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS – No reports. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the City Council needed to discuss the hearing schedule for the Errol Estate 

Project. The project went to DRC and is scheduled before the Planning Commission at a special 

meeting on Tuesday, July 25, 2017, Apopka Community Center at 6:00 p.m.  He stated if the vote 

is to transmit this to the State Department of Economic Opportunity, Council will need to hold a 

hearing. Due to the expected number in attendance, staff has proposed holding these hearings as 

alternative meetings at the Community Center.  

 

It was the consensus of the City Council to hold the meeting for the Errol Estate project on 

Tuesday, August 22, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. at the Community Center. 

 

ITEMS NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you email from a resident to the Utility Billing Department. 

2. Thank you email on the behalf of a resident to the Police & Fire Departments. 

3. Thank you letter from GFWC Apopka Woman’s Club for City’s assistance with 56th Annual 

Apopka Art & Foliage Festival. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 10:13 p.m. 

 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

15



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Award a contract for the installation of reclaimed water main pipe along Ocoee-Apopka Rd.  
  

16



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     N/A  

       OTHER: 
  

 

SUBJECT: RECLAIMED WATER SYSTEM EXTENSION OCOEE-APOPKA RD. / C.R. 437-A 

(W. KEENE RD. – PARKSTONE BLVD.) 

 

 

   

REQUEST: AWARD CONTRACT TO PROVIDENCE CONSTRUCTION &  DEVELOPMENT 

COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $428,914.00  

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Public Services received sealed bids from two (2) companies to perform the installation of the Reclaimed 

Water Main pipe along Ocoee –Apopka Rd. The bids are as follows:  

 

Company 

Go Underground Utilities, LLC    $596.850.00 

Providence Construction & Development Company  $428,914.00 

 

Project consists of installing approximately 2,300 L.F. of 16” pipe within the right-of-way. The project 

further consists of furnishing all transportation, equipment, labor, services and supplies necessary to 

install the pipe. The City will purchase and furnish pipe, fittings and misc. appurtenances for the project.. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Reclaimed Impact Fee FY 17  

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the low bid amount of $428,914.00 from Providence Construction & Development Company 

with a 10% contingency amount of $42,891.40 for a total amount of $471,805.40  

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

17



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Award a contract for the purchase of ductile iron pipe and fittings for the reclaimed water main along Ocoee-Apopka Rd. 
  

18



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     N/A  

       OTHER: 
  

 

SUBJECT: PIPE PURCHASE FOR THE RECLAIMED WATER SYSTEM EXTENSION 

OCOEE-APOPKA RD. / C.R. 437-A (W. KEENE RD. – PARKSTONE BLVD.) 

 

 

   

REQUEST: AWARD CONTRACT TO HD SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $115,430.53  

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Public Services received sealed bids from four (4) companies for the purchase of Ductile Iron Pipe and 

Fittings for the Reclaimed Water Main Pipe along Ocoee –Apopka Rd. The bids are as follows:  

 

Company 

HD Supply Waterworks, Ltd    $115,430.53 

Ferguson Water Works    $124,285.10 

Consolidated Pipe & Supply    $131,393.58 

Fortiline Waterworks     $126,656.78 

 

Project consists of furnishing all pipe, fittings and miscellaneous appurtenances necessary to install the 

Reclaimed Water Main Pipe including delivery thereof.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 403 - Reclaimed Water Impact Fees 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the low bid amount of $115,430.53 from HD Supply Waterworks, Ltd with a 10% contingency 

amount of $11,543.05 for a total amount of $126,973.58  

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

19



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize an agreement for the processing & marketing of Apopka curbside recycling material.  Jay Davoll 
  

20



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

  X  OTHER: Business         
  

 

SUBJECT: CITY OF APOPKA CURBSIDE RECYCLING PROCESSING AND MARKETING 

FEE INCREASE. 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE AN AGREEMENT WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT INC. OF 

  FLORIDA 
  
SUMMARY:   
 

Orange County’s Contract No. Y3-1021, with Waste Management Inc. of Florida, expired on June 30, 

2017, for the processing of recycling materials.  Under this contract, the City paid no processing fees and 

received no rebates.  In April 2017, Orange County advertised Bid No. Y17-1072, for the processing of 

recycling materials, but received five (5) “No Bid” responses.  On June 21, 2017, Orange County entered 

into a six-month extension of Contract No. Y3-1021, with the opportunity for one six-month renewal, 

with Waste Management Inc. of Florida.  The contract extension provides for a new $42.00 per ton 

processing fee for recycling materials.  The City has historically benefitted from being able to take 

recycling materials to the County at a zero cost per ton disposal fee.  This increase in cost was not 

anticipated by the County as is not reflected in the current City budget for Sanitation Landfill Fees.  Due 

to the timing of Orange County’s bid, the City was not in a position to advertise a Request for Proposal 

(RFP) for the disposal of recycling materials in a timely manner. 

 

The City collects an average of 183 tons per month, or 2,196 tons per year, of recycling material.  As a 

comparison, Orange County collects in excess of 30,000 tons per year.  The economies of scale indicate it 

is in the City’s interest to continue to piggyback Orange County’s contract for the disposal of recycling 

materials to obtain the best possible pricing.  It is predicted that Orange County will re-bid within the next 

year based on the contract extensions referenced above.   

 

The unanticipated cost for this six-month agreement is $46,116.  The monthly cost is $7,686 (183 

tons/month x $42.00/ton). 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Fund 402 Sanitation Reserves Fund   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize an agreement with Waste Management Inc. of Florida, piggybacking on Orange County 

contract Y3-1021 effective July 1, 2017 for the processing and marketing of the City of Apopka curbside 

recycling material for six months, in the amount of $46,116, and an additional six months extension if 

approved within the next fiscal year budget.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

21



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve emergency repairs to the Water Reclamation Facility North Clarifier.  
  

22



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

  X  OTHER:  BUSINESS       
  

 

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY REPAIRS TO THE WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY NORTH 

CLARIFIER 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE OVIVO USA, LLC TO PERFORM EMERGENCY REPAIRS TO THE 

  WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY NORTH CLARIFIER IN THE AMOUNT OF  

  $81,860. 
  
SUMMARY:   

 

The Water Reclamation Facility experienced a terminal failure of the main drive unit on the North Clarifier.  

Staff contacted the manufacturer, Ovivo USA, LLC, (Ovivo) for assistance, as this is specialized work and 

cannot be accomplished using local companies.  Ovivo staff disassembled the drive unit and determined 

that there was a failure of the main drive gears and seal.  Additionally, staff contacted Brownie’s Septic 

Tanks to perform emergency solids removal and cleaning of the clarifier to enable disassembly and 

troubleshooting of the clarifier by Ovivo, in the amount of $6,275.  The clarifier is an essential component 

of the wastewater treatment process for the settling and removal of solids in the production of reclaimed 

water. 

 

A proposal was received from Ovivo to disassemble the clarifier drive unit and troubleshoot the nature of 

the failure in the amount of $21,060 and a second proposal was received to replace the drive unit and 

complete the emergency repairs in the amount of $60,800, for a total repair cost of $81,860. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Fund 401 Sewer Reserves Fund   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve Ovivo USA, LLC to perform the emergency repairs to the Water Reclamation Facility North 

Clarifier in the amount of $81,860.  Approve Brownie’s Septic Tanks emergency tank cleaning costs in the 

amount of $6,275, for a total emergency repairs cost of $88,135. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

23



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve the Emergency Roof Replacement of the Fire Administration/Fire Station #1 Facility.  Jay Davoll 
  

24



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  July 19, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:   Public Services   

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:  Roof Inspection Report  

  X  OTHER:  BUSINESS          

  
 

SUBJECT:   FIRE ADMINISTRATION/FIRE STATION #1 FACILITY EMERGENCY 

ROOF REPLACEMENT 

 

Request: APPROVAL OF $200,000 FOR THE EMEGENCY ROOF REPLACEMENT 

OF THE FIRE ADMINISTRATION/FIRE STATION #1 FACILITY 
  
SUMMARY:  

The City’s IT Server Room, 911 Call Center, Emergency Operations Center (EOC), Fire Administration 

and Fire Station #1, are located under the same roof.  An interruption of service, even temporarily, to any 

of these services would be significant. 

The flat portions of the Fire Administration/Fire Station #1 roof are in very poor or “failed condition” 

requiring immediate replacement. The reasons for the unsatisfactory conditions include the age of the 

existing roof system, multiple patches, failing repairs, membrane deterioration, and numerous areas of 

non-code compliant conduit and equipment. 

The roof replacement will benefit from our membership in the U.S. Communities Government Purchasing 

Alliance. This is a national government cooperative purchasing program meeting Florida Statute Chapter 

163 requirements, and allows the City to utilize competitively solicited contracts from other government 

agencies.  

Cost: $200,000 (estimated)     
FUNDING SOURCE: 

General Fund Reserves 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

City Council Approve the Emergency Roof Replacement of the Fire Administration/Fire Station #1 

Facility 

  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

25



The Garland Company, Inc.

Roof Asset Management Program

City of Apopka - Fire Admin & Emergency Operation Center

Prepared By
Craig OHara

 

Prepared For
Mr. Jeffrey Plaugher
 

 
26



Emergency Operations Center / Facility Summary 3 
Emergency Operations Center / Entire Roof / Construction Details 4 
Emergency Operations Center / Entire Roof / Roof Section Photo 5 
Emergency Operations Center / Entire Roof / Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment 6 
Emergency Operations Center / Entire Roof / Solution: Apr 14, 2017 13 

Table of Contents

27



  

Facility Summary

Client: City of Apopka

Facility: Emergency Operations Center

Facility Data

Address 1 175 E 5th St.

Address 2 -

City Apopka

State Florida

ZIP 32703

Type of Facility Municipal

Contact Person Jeff Plaugher

Asset Information

Name Date Installed Square Footage Roof Access

Entire Roof 12,000 Ladder Needed

Page 3 of 14Facility Summary
28



  

Construction Details

Client: City of Apopka

Facility: Emergency Operations Center

Roof Section: Entire Roof

Information

Year Installed - Square Footage 12,000

Slope Dimension 1/4:12 Eave Height 15

Roof Access Ladder Needed System Type Built Up Roof (BUR)

Assembly

Roof # Layer Type Description Attachment R-Value Thickness

1 Deck Concrete - -

1 Insulation Perlite Hot asphalt - 3"-7" (tapered)

1 Membrane Mod Bit - 2 ply mineral surfaced Hot asphalt - -

Details

Perimeter Detail Wall Flashing, Metal Edge

Flashing Material Modified Membrane

Drain System Internal Roof Drains, Scuppers

Page 4 of 14Construction Details
29



Page 5 of 14Roof Section Photo
30



  

Photo Report

Client: City of Apopka

Facility: Emergency Operations Center

Roof Section: Entire Roof

Report Date: 04/11/2017

Title: Assessment

The purpose of this photo inspection is to assess the existing conditions of the Emergency Operations Center. 

Currently the flat roof sections appear to be in failed condition and will need to be replaced as soon as budget allows. The
primary reasons for this rating include the age of the existing roof system, multiple patches, failing repairs, membrane
deterioration, and numerous areas of non-code compliant conduit and equipment. 

Photo 1

Pitch Pocket Deterioration: Metal protrusions that penetrate the roof system to
allow conduits to run from the rooftop into the building.  Movement from the
protrusion can break the waterproofing compound, creating cracks.  Over time, the
release of solvents from the compound can cause the material to shrink, leaving
gaps along the edges of the pan and around structural support.  Water can enter
through a defective pitch pan and find its way into the interior of the building.
Moisture can also penetrate into the roof system leading to premature failure.

Photo 2

The could pose an electrical fire/safety hazard if the box were to fall off its mount
during a storm. 

Page 6 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
31



Photo 3

Roof section has been coated in what appears to be an acrylic coating. It is
beginning to delaminate is several areas. 

Photo 4

Patches are found throughout the lower main roof section as featured
in this photo

Photo 5

Blisters: Soft spongy pockets or swellings in the roofing material.  They occur
between layers of felt or between the roof membrane and substrate.  Air or
moisture vapor entrapped within a blister expands as the roof and outside air
temperatures rise. This results in sufficient pressure to push the roofing felts
upwards and apart.  Blisters may be ruptured by roof traffic, expanding frozen
water, or hail (especially during colder weather). Some blisters may become so
large as to affect drainage, which may then cause ponding water.  Laps could also
be pulled apart, resulting in leakage. A ruptured blister will immediately allow
water to penetrate and damage the roof system.

Page 7 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
32



Photo 6

Coping cap joints on upper roof section over the FD truck bay have been previously
repaired. This material is beginning to dry out and crack which will lead to failure. 

Photo 7

Delaminated coating examples

Photo 8

Cap sheet on lower main section has lost adhesion and has split open. 

Page 8 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
33



Photo 9

Unit is currently sitting on two pieces of deteriorated/rotted wood blocking. Proper
metal stand/curb will need to be installed during roof replacement. 

Photo 10

Special coordination will be required during the replacement of this roof as to not
damage the complex wiring system that exists on this roof. 

Photo 11

Pitch Pocket Deterioration: Metal protrusions that penetrate the roof system to
allow conduits to run from the rooftop into the building.  Movement from the
protrusion can break the waterproofing compound, creating cracks.  Over time, the
release of solvents from the compound can cause the material to shrink, leaving
gaps along the edges of the pan and around structural support.  Water can enter
through a defective pitch pan and find its way into the interior of the building.
Moisture can also penetrate into the roof system leading to premature failure.

Page 9 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
34



Photo 12

Bare or Exposed Felts: Weathering causes the roofs surfacing
materials to oxidize and wear away after a period of time. Loss of
protection from the surfacing material results in accelerated
deterioration of the primary waterpoofer asphalt, along with the
systems reinforcement plies which provide the strength for the system.
Heat and UV rays dry out unprotected asphalt which then leave the
bare reinforcement plies  exposed to the elements. The exposed
reinforcement will begin to absorb and wick moisture into the built up
layers of the roof system. This condition leads to accelerated damage
via blisters and interlayer delamination.  Roof system damage occurs
when these weakened areas of the roof system are affected by thermal
shock, typical roof traffic and normal seasonal conditions.

Photo 13

Field of the upper roof (bay) - overview looking south. 

Photo 14

Upper roof - overview looking west. 

Page 10 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
35



Photo 15

Blisters: Soft spongy pockets or swellings in the roofing material.  They occur
between layers of felt or between the roof membrane and substrate.  Air or
moisture vapor entrapped within a blister expands as the roof and outside air
temperatures rise. This results in sufficient pressure to push the roofing felts
upwards and apart.  Blisters may be ruptured by roof traffic, expanding frozen
water, or hail (especially during colder weather). Some blisters may become so
large as to affect drainage, which may then cause ponding water.  Laps could also
be pulled apart, resulting in leakage. A ruptured blister will immediately allow
water to penetrate and damage the roof system.

Photo 16

Core sample revealed lightweight concrete decking, perlite insulation and multi-ply
BUR with gravel surfacing. 

The insulation was deteriorated which is a result of moisture. This exposes your
decking to potential issues as well as significant r-value loss.

Photo 17

gutter and downspout found on north elevation will need replaced along with edge
metal which is rusting out in several spots. 

Page 11 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
36



Photo 18

Through wall scuppers on upper section over FD truck bay which connect to these
downspouts. 

Photo 19

Overview of metal decking on upper bay roof section. 

Page 12 of 14Photo Report: Apr 11, 2017 - Assessment
37



  

Solution Options

Client: City of Apopka

Facility: Emergency Operations Center

Roof Section: Entire Roof

Replace Options

Solution Option: Replace   Action Year: 2018

Square Footage: 12,000 Expected Life (Years): 30

Budget Range: $160,000.00 - $180,000.00

Please note the above cost is a budget number not a firm price. A firm price would be determined by a bid
process. This replacement includes the following and is performed by a contractor:
 
This system will include the following:

Remove existing roof system and abandoned equipment down to concrete roof deck 
Install Tapered ISO insulation in hot asphalt (staggering all joints) 
Install 1/2" recovery board in hot asphalt 
Install 1 ply of StressBase 80 in hot asphalt 
Install 1 ply of StressPly Mineral in hot asphalt 
Top coat with Garla-Brite for UV Protection and maximum energy efficiency
New aluminum perimeter edge metal, coping, and accessories as needed. 

 
The StressPly 2 ply membrane system is a superior Garland product that is modified with SBS polymers
providing this roof with an unparalleled tensile strength and temperature flex. The StressPly system also
comes with a 30-year non-prorated warranty issued by Garland.

The Garland Difference
 
1. Assistance with specification preparation
2. Engineering Services
    ASCE 7-10 wind uplift calculations and drainage calculations
3. Qualified contractors to bid on the project
4. Assistance with pre-bid meetings
5. Bid analysis
6. 3 days per week on site job monitoring
7. On-line job progress reports
8. Assistance with job close out
9. Help establishing a pro-active roof maintenance program performed on an annual basis to assure
performance
10. A 30 year NDL, non-prorated, roof warranty

Page 13 of 14Solution: Apr 14, 2017
38



Page 14 of 14Solution: Apr 14, 2017
39



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Contingent mediated settlement agreement for Richard D. Anderson.   Attorney Cliff Shepard 
  

40



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Settlement Agreement 

  X   OTHER: Business       Mutual Release 
  

 

SUBJECT: RICHARD D. ANDERSON  

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL OF A CONTINGENT MEDIATED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

  
SUMMARY:  
 

On June 1, 2016, the Apopka City Council voted unanimously to terminate the City’s contract with 

Richard Anderson and to file suit against Mr. Anderson.  The Council took this action after it became 

public through news media reports that Mr. Anderson was not a registered lobbyist on behalf of the City 

and had been involved in an April 5, 2016 automobile accident where he allegedly walked away from the 

scene of the accident involving serious bodily injury.  On or about April 4, 2017, Mr. Anderson entered a 

plea of ‘no contest’ to that charge and was placed on 3 years felony probation.  On May 15, 2017, Mr. 

Anderson filed a counter-claim against the City, alleging breach of contract.  On February 27, 2017, the 

court ordered the City and Mr. Anderson to engage in mediation prior to July 1, 2017.  On June 29, 2017, 

a mediation conference was held in Orlando with Mayor Kilsheimer representing the City, assisted by the 

City’s legal counsel. The parties executed a contingent mediated settlement agreement, which is being 

presented to council for its consideration without recommendation.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Should the council choose to settle this claim, payment will be made using general fund reserves along 

with contributions from other city fund sources, based on a proportionate share of the expense.    
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Apopka Comprehensive Plan - 2017 Evaluation & Appraisal Report (EAR)  David Moon 
  

49



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): F.S. 163.3174 (part) 

X OTHER: 2017 EAR Amendment   
  
SUBJECT:    APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 2017 EVALUATION & APPRAISAL 

REPORT (EAR) 

    

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO NOTIFY THE FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY THAT AN UPDATED 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN WILL BE PREPARED BY AUGUST 1, 2018 AND 

TO PROCEED WITH THE EVALUATION AND APPRAISAL PROCESS.  
  
SUMMARY:  
 
Pursuant to Florida Administrative Code, Rule Chapter 73C-49, at least once every seven years, local 
governments are required to determine whether or not its comprehensive plan needs updating to reflect changes 
in state requirements since its last comprehensive plan update.   As required by Florida Statute, the City must 
notify the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity by August 1, 2017 whether it will or will not conduct 
an evaluation and appraisal report.   
 
The EAR process provides the City the opportunity to update Comprehensive Plan policies to ensure they 
address the long-term planning vision of Apopka.  In addition, EAR amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
allows staff to address inconsistencies between the City’s Comprehensive Plan and updated Land Development 
Code. 
 
Upon authorization by City Council, the Community Development staff will notify the Florida Department of 
Economic Opportunity’s Community Planning Division of the City of Apopka’s intent to review current 
Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives & Policies. 
 
Should City staff identify a need to update current policies, any proposed text amendments must be transmitted 
to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity within one year, and will follow the public hearing process 
for Comprehensive Plan text and future land use amendments, including a Planning Commission hearing and 
recommendation followed by City Council public hearings for adoption.  Planning Commission is delegated the 
role of Local Planning Agency by the City Council through Section 11.05.00.A of the Land Development Code 
and Ordinance No. 2137.  Pursuant to Florida Statute 163.3174, “The governing body of each local government, 
individually or in combination as provided in s. 163.3171, shall designate and by ordinance establish a “local 
planning agency,” unless the agency is otherwise established by law.”  The Planning Commission has made a 
recommendation that the City proceed with an update of the Comprehensive Plan. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
Funds are not included in the FY 2016/17 city budget nor are they proposed for the FY 2017/18 city budget for 
this project.  Therefore, the work will be conducted by City staff.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  
 

50



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 2017 EAR BASED AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 11, 2017, unanimously recommended City Council 

authorize the notification of the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity that an updated 

Comprehensive Plan will be prepared by August 1, 2018, and for the Community Development Department 

to proceed with preparation of an Evaluation and Appraisal Report for the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Authorize the City Administrator to notify the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity that an updated 

Comprehensive Plan will be prepared by August 1, 2018 and for the Community Development Department 

to proceed with the Evaluation and Appraisal process. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

51



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 2017 EAR BASED AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Florida Statute 163.3174 (part) 
 

1) The governing body of each local government, individually or in combination as provided in s. 163.3171, 
shall designate and by ordinance establish a “local planning agency,” unless the agency is otherwise 
established by law. Notwithstanding any special act to the contrary, all local planning agencies or 
equivalent agencies that first review rezoning and comprehensive plan amendments in each municipality 
and county shall include a representative of the school district appointed by the school board as a nonvoting 
member of the local planning agency or equivalent agency to attend those meetings at which the agency 
considers comprehensive plan amendments and rezonings that would, if approved, increase residential 
density on the property that is the subject of the application. However, this subsection does not prevent 
the governing body of the local government from granting voting status to the school board member. The 
governing body may designate itself as the local planning agency pursuant to this subsection with the 
addition of a nonvoting school board representative. All local planning agencies shall provide 
opportunities for involvement by applicable community college boards, which may be accomplished by 
formal representation, membership on technical advisory committees, or other appropriate means. The 
local planning agency shall prepare the comprehensive plan or plan amendment after hearings to be held 
after public notice and shall make recommendations to the governing body regarding the adoption or 
amendment of the plan. The agency may be a local planning commission, the planning department of the 
local government, or other instrumentality, including a countywide planning entity established by special 
act or a council of local government officials created pursuant to s. 163.02, provided the composition of 
the council is fairly representative of all the governing bodies in the county or planning area; . . . . . 

 
(4) The local planning agency shall have the general responsibility for the conduct of the comprehensive 

planning program.  Specifically, the local planning agency shall: 
 

(a) Be the agency responsible for the preparation of the comprehensive plan or plan amendment and shall 
make recommendations to the governing body regarding the adoption or amendment of such plan. 
During the preparation of the plan or plan amendment and prior to any recommendation to the 
governing body, the local planning agency shall hold at least one public hearing, with public notice, 
on the proposed plan or plan amendment. The governing body in cooperation with the local planning 
agency may designate any agency, committee, department, or person to prepare the comprehensive 
plan or plan amendment, but final recommendation of the adoption of such plan or plan amendment 
to the governing body shall be the responsibility of the local planning agency. 

 
(b) Monitor and oversee the effectiveness and status of the comprehensive plan and recommend to the 

governing body such changes in the comprehensive plan as may from time to time be required, 
including the periodic evaluation and appraisal of the comprehensive plan required by s. 163.3191. 

 
(c) Review proposed land development regulations, land development codes, or amendments thereto, 

and make recommendations to the governing body as to the consistency of the proposal with the 
adopted comprehensive plan, or element or portion thereof, when the local planning agency is serving 
as the land development regulation commission or the local government requires review by both the 
local planning agency and the land development regulation commission. 

 
(d) Perform any other functions, duties, and responsibilities assigned to it by the governing body or by 

general or special law. 
 
(5) All meetings of the local planning agency shall be public meetings, and agency records shall be public 

records. 
 

52



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2525 - Insubstantial Change to PUD Development Condition D.4. – Apopka Holdings, LLC  David 
Moon 

  

53



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: July 19, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: Ordinance    Vicinity Map 
    Ordinance No. 2525 
    Final Dev. Plan 
    Landscape Plan 

  
SUBJECT:    INSUBTANTIAL CHANGETO PUD DEVELOPMENT CONDITION D.4. 

– APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC 
    
REQUEST:  APPROVE INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE TO DEVELOPMENT 

CONDITION D.4., ALLOWING SCREEN VINYL FENCE IN LIEU OF A 
SCREEN WALL (PARCEL ID #S: 09-21-28-0197-10-211; 09-21-28-0197-10-
213) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Apopka Holdings, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 1120 Clarcona Rd & 1124 S Park Ave 
 
EXISTING USE: Site is under construction for a mental health and substance abuse rehabilitation 

clinic, which includes inpatient residential treatment with up to 29 beds.  
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Office 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Applicant requests to install a six-foot high vinyl fence in lieu of a six-foot high 

brick wall on the south and west property line  
 
ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD-PO/I-Residential) (Note: this Change of Zoning 

request is being processed along with the request to change the Future Land Use 
Map designation to “City” Office) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   0.52 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE  
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: 29 bed boarding house and a single family house 
ZONING DISTRICT: PROPOSED: 1,933 sq. ft. medical office facility and 6,896 sq. ft. inpatient 

rehabilitation facility for up to 40 residential patients. (The current 
floor area ratio of existing buildings is 0.389, while the max. floor 
area ratio for the zoning district is 0.30 or 6,795 sq. ft.)  

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

54



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The subject were annexed into the City of Apopka on February 17, 2016, 
through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2488. 
 
On November 16, 2016 a Planned Unit Development zoning was adopted by City Council under Ordinance 
Number 2525 for the Central Florida Recovery property that includes a development condition that the site 
shall provide, at minimum, a six-foot brick/masonry wall along the western and southern portions of the subject 
properties adjacent to residential uses. This condition appears under development condition D.4. of  Ord. 2525 
and as shown below.  The applicant is requesting to install a six foot high vinyl fence instead of a brick wall. 
Applicant indicated to planning staff that the need for the vinyl fence instead of a brick wall because a “vinyl 
fence appears more residential.” 
 
At the time City Council adopted the PUD master plan\final development plan, the applicant did not submit a 
landscape plan.  A condition was approved by City Council that the landscape plan must be approved by the 
Development Review Committee (DRC).  A landscape plan, provided as an exhibit, was submitted by the 
applicant and approved by the DRC.  A brick wall appears on the north, west, and south property lines within 
the approved landscape plan.  
 
Existing single family homes and neighborhoods abut the subject site to the south and west, as shown in the 
aerial provided in the first exhibit below. 
 
The applicant is redeveloping the property for use as a mental health and substance abuse rehabilitation center 
with inpatient care. An existing 1,933 sq. ft. single-family house will be converted to office and rehabilitation 
services, and the existing rooming house (29 bed capacity; 6,896 sq. ft.) will be converted to a residential 
facility for up to 40 resident patients.  In addition, a community bathroom facilities, kitchen, and dining 
facilities will be provided inside an enclosed building.  With a maximum floor area ratio standard of 0.30, a 
maximum of 6,795 sq. ft. of building floor area is allowed on the .52 acre site.  The combined floor area of the 
two existing buildings is 8,829 sq. ft. or 2,033 square feet above the maximum allowed for acreage on this 
property.  The current floor area ratio of existing buildings is 0.389, while the maximum floor area ratio for 
the zoning district is 0.30.  Existing buildings cannot be expanded or additional buildings constructed until 
additional land is added to the subject site to meet the 0.30 FAR. 
 
INSUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT TO PUD MASTER PLAN - Under Section 2.02.18.N, a change to the 
master plan revision can be considered substantial if it consists of: 
 

1. An increase in intensity of use or density; 
2. A change in traffic access points; 
3. A reduction in approved open space; 
4. A reduction in required pavement widths; 
5. An increase in the overall coverage of structures; 
6. A change in the use or character of the PUD plan. 

 
DRC does not find the change in screen material for a wall\fence from brick to vinyl to be substantial change, 
thus making it an insubstantial change.  However, as the applicant did not have the landscape plans ready for 
City Council review at the time of public hearings for the master plan\final development plan, and because the 
buffer requirements was specifically approved by City Council as a requirement of the master plan\final 
development plan, City Council action is requested on the change of screen material from brick to vinyl for 
the six-foot high screen appearing on the landscape plans. For multi-family, office and commercial uses, the 
Land Development Code requires a six-foot high brick or masonry wall adjacent to property zoned or used for 
residential purposes.   
 

55



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 3 
 
APPROVED PUD DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS (Ord. 2525):  That the zoning classification of the 
following described property shall be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions affecting the use of the 
Property: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: all such uses permitted within the PO\I 
(Professional Office/Institutional PO\I (zoning category) except for following PO\I uses shall be 
prohibited:  

   
1. Hospitals, museums, libraries or cultural institutions;  

 
2. Retail establishments, including those for the sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies 

or other hospital-related items; 
 

3. Boarding or rooming house(s); 
 

4. The use of medical marijuana for treatment purposes unless authorized by State law or a medical 
marijuana ordinance approved by City Council; 
 

5. All other uses listed as prohibited within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning district; 
 

6. All uses permitted through a special exception within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning 
district. 

 
B. Over-night inpatient rooming facilities shall be permitted as an ancillary use if the site is used for 

medical care; all other residential uses shall be prohibited. Permitted residential shall be limited as 
follows:   
 
1. Full-time residential shall be permitted for an on-site caretaker or property manager. 

 
2. Residents at the site shall only be patients served by the on-site medical services. 
 
 
3. Residents typically will not have automobiles parked at the residential facilities.  All on-site parking 

or satellite parking shall be identified at the Master Plan/Final Development Plan. 
   

C. If the Master Plan/Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been issued a 
certificate of completion by the City within two years from the effective date of this ordinance, the 
approval of the Final Development Plan will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for Master Plan/Final Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Final 

Development provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
D. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative development guideline that is 

adequate to protect the public health, safety and welfare, the following zoning and development 
standards shall apply to the development of the Property and for the master site plan: 

56



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 4 
 
 

1. If the substance abuse/mental health treatment facility vacates the site for more than 180 days, the 
permitted uses shall revert to those allowed within the “City” R-3 zoning district.  In such case, a 
rooming house\boarding house is not allowed.  
 

2. Any new structures shall meet the architectural design standards set forth in the Apopka 
Development Design Guidelines dated May 2000, or as amended by the Apopka City Council. Any 
building, whether residential or non-residential, shall be designed with a residential architecture 
style and shall have a pitched roof.  
 

3. The existing two buildings may be used for medical treatment and residential facilities but the gross 
building floor area shall not be expanded.  Buildings may be used for medical office (drug, alcohol 
and mental health medical treatment and associated residential care uses only.  No new buildings 
or expansion of existing buildings shall occur unless the total floor area of all buildings complies 
with the floor area ratio for the PO\I zoning district (i.e., 0.30 FAR).   
 

4. The site shall provide, at minimum, a six-foot brick/masonry wall along the western and southern 
portions of the subject properties adjacent to residential uses. 
 

5. The subject properties shall meet all other buffer yard and landscaping requirements, as defined in 
the Apopka Land Development Code, to the greatest extent practical. 
 

6. All services occurring at the site, including dining and cooking facilities, shall occur inside an 
enclosed building. 
 

7. At the Master Plan/Final Development Plan, if the subject site cannot accommodate the required 
number of parking spaces, applicant must either obtain long-term contracts with abutting churches 
to use their parking spaces to meet the parking requirement, or the Master Plan/Final Development 
Plan shall not be approved.  Medical patients residing at the residential facility shall not be allowed 
to park at the site unless a Final Development Plan demonstrates sufficient parking is available.  
 

8. Existing floor area of buildings cannot be expanded square feet of the existing buildings can be 
used for the medical treatment and residential facility to comply with the .30 FAR policy 
requirements set forth in Policy 3.1.j.  No more than 40 patients or the maximum number of 
occupants allowed by building code, whichever is lower, shall reside at the residential facilities.  
Only patients and employees of the medical provider may reside at approved residential facilities. 
 

9. Connection to City central water and sewer service is required prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy.     
 

10.  Any off-site parking at the  New Hope Missionary Church, located at 927 South Central Avenue, 
must have a parking agreement approved by the City Council in a form approved by the city 
attorney, assuring the continue availability of the off-site parking facilities to support parking space 
needs demanded by the Recovery Center. The parking agreement shall be recorded with the records 
of the County Comptroller prior to any issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  The Community 
Development Director with consultation from the city engineer shall determine if the off-site 
parking at New Hope Missionary Church must be paved or constructed with a material acceptable 
to the city engineer.  Any improvements to off-site parking shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Development Review Committee through a master plan/final development plan.  Any other off-site 
parking location shall require the approval of City Council. 

57



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 5 
 

 
11. No site construction activity shall commence until the Development Review Committee has 

accepted the final changes to the Final Development Plan. Further, landscape and irrigation plans 
for the Recovery Center site shall be consistent with City code and shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Development Review Committee prior to any pre-construction meeting for the site 
improvements.   
 

12. Unless otherwise provided herein, the modification to the design of the site through an amended 
Master Plan/Final Development Plan shall occur consistent with development standards for the 
PO/I zoning district.  Any modifications to the Master Plan/Final Development Plan after the 
effective date of this ordinance shall occur consistent with the procedures and requirements set 
forth in Article 12 of the Land Development Code and shall not require an amendment to this 
ordinance.  Such amendment to the Master Plan/Final Development Plan shall be treated through 
the same procedure for an amendment to a Final Development Plan. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 19, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm)  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
Development Review Committee (DRC):  City staff has no objection to the vinyl fence in lieu of a brick wall. 
 
City Council:  Motion to approve an insubstantial change to allow a six-foot high vinyl fence in lieu of a brick 
wall along the south, west and north property line.   
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 

58



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Church\recreation facilities 

East (County)  Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single-family residential & vacant 

residential 

South (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single family residence 

West (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Church and single family homes 

 

LAND USE  

COMPATIBILITY: The proposed zoning and use is compatible with adjacent zoning districts 

and the general character of the surrounding area. Predominant land uses 

in the abutting and surrounding area are single family residential and 

religious facilities. Industrial zoned property is within 250 from the 

property and commercial zoning is within 450 feet to the south and 600 

feet to the north. Parcels abutting to the north are used for a church – the 

St. Paul African Methodist Episcopal Church, and Lighthouse 

Tabernacle church abuts part of the western (rear) property line, which 

are both institutional uses.  In addition, the area contains other non-

residential land uses, including industrial to the northeast and 

commercial to the south of the subject sites.  Furthermore, the applicant 

– Apopka Holdings LLC – has recently purchased properties east of the 

sites, across Park Avenue, to incorporate into the proposed medical 

treatment facility at a later date.   

 

The underlying PO/I and Residential zoning serves as a transitional 

zoning between the residential uses to the east, south and west, and to 

the institutional, commercial and industrial zoning and uses to the north 

and northeast of the subject properties. 

 

The Land Use Compatibility supporting information from the Future 

Land Use amendment is incorporated into the findings of the Zoning 

Report. 
 
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Minor Arterial roadway (Clarcona Road). 

A medical office/clinic is a permissible use within the PO/I zoning 
category.  Future land use designations and zoning categories assigned 
to properties to the north, south, east, and west is predominantly 
residential, industrial and commercial.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD/PO/I/Residential zoning is compatible with policies 

set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  

59



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 7 
 
PO/I DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:    FAR:     0.30 (max.) 
     Open Space:    30 percent 
     Minimum Site Area:   10,000 sq. ft. 
     Minimum Lot Width:   85 ft. 
     Setbacks: Front:   25 ft. 
       Side:   10 ft. 
       Corner: 25 ft. 
       Rear:   10 ft. 
     Adjacent to Residential:  25 ft. 
 
BUFFERYARD 
REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten 

(10) foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent residential use shall 
provide a minimum six (6) foot masonry wall within a ten (10) foot 
landscaped bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Professional offices, medical or dental clinics and offices, establishments 

for the retail sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies, 
hospitals, museums, libraries, churches and educational facilities. 

  

60



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 8 
 

Wall Location 

(Blue dashed line) 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

61



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 9 
 

Apopka Holdings LLC 
1120 Clarcona Road & 1124 S Park Avenue 

0.52 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  2 dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 8,829 sq. ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 
To: “City” Office (max FAR 0.3) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-3 (ZIP) 

To: “City” PUD/PO/I/Residential 
 

Parcel ID #: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213 
 

VICINITY MAP

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

62



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 
  

63



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 11 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 19, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – INSUBSTANTIAL CHANGE 
PAGE 12 
 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

65



ORDINANCE NO. 2525

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE

ZONING FROM " COUNTY" R-3 ( RESIDENTIAL) TO PLANNED UNIT

DEVELOPMENT ( PUD-PO/I-RESIDENTIAL); FOR CERTAIN REAL

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE, 

EAST OF SOUTH CENTRAL AVENUE, SOUTH OF EAST G. H. 

WASHINGTON STREET, NORTH OF EAST 12TH STREET, COMPRISING
0. 52 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 
and

WHEREAS, the City ofApopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified
in Section I of this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development ( PUD-PO/ I-Residential) zoning has
been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka
Land Development Code. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 

Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as
Planned Unit Development ( PUD-PO/ I-Residential), as defined in the Apopka Land Development

Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions, as established in Exhibit " A", subject to the

following zoning provisions: 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: That the zoning classification of the following described
property shall be designated as Planned Unit Development ( PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land

Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions affecting the use of the Property: 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: all such uses permitted within the PO\ I

Professional Office/ Institutional PO\ I ( zoning category) except for following PO\ I uses shall be
prohibited: 

1. Hospitals, museums, libraries or cultural institutions; 

2. Retail establishments, including those for the sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental
supplies or other hospital -related items; 

3. Boarding or rooming house( s); 

4. The use ofmedical marijuana for treatment purposes unless authorized by State law or a medical
marijuana ordinance approved by City Council; 

5. All other uses listed as prohibited within the Professional Office/ Institutional zoning district; 

6. All uses permitted through a special exception within the Professional Office/ Institutional

zoning district. 

66



ORDINANCE NO. 2525

PAGE 3

abutting churches to use their parking spaces to meet the parking requirement, or the Master
Plan/ Final Development Plan shall not be approved. Medical patients residing at the
residential facility shall not be allowed to park at the site unless a Final Development Plan
demonstrates sufficient parking is available. 

8. Existing floor area of buildings cannot be expanded square feet of the existing buildings can
be used for the medical treatment and residential facility to comply with the . 30 FAR policy
requirements set forth in Policy 3. 1. j. No more than 40 patients or the maximum number of
occupants allowed by building code, whichever is lower, shall reside at the residential
facilities. Only patients and employees of the medical provider may reside at approved
residential facilities. 

9. Connection to City central water and sewer service is required prior to issuance of a certificate
of occupancy. 

10. Any off-site parking at the New Hope Missionary Church, located at 927 South Central
Avenue, must have a parking agreement approved by the City Council in a form approved by
the city attorney, assuring the continue availability of the off-site parking facilities to support
parking space needs demanded by the Recovery Center. The parking agreement shall be
recorded with the records of the County Comptroller prior to any issuance of a certificate of
occupancy. The Community Development Director with consultation from the city engineer
shall determine if the off-site parking at New Hope Missionary Church must be paved or
constructed with a material acceptable to the city engineer. Any improvements to off-site
parking shall be reviewed and approved by the Development Review Committee through a
master plan/final development plan. Any other off-site parking location shall require the
approval of City Council. 

11. No site construction activity shall commence until the Development Review Committee has
accepted in final changes to the Final Development Plan. Further, landscape and irrigation

plans for the Recovery Center site shall be consistent with City code and shall be submitted to
and approved by the Development Review Committee prior to any pre -construction meeting
for the site improvements. 

12. Unless otherwise provided herein, the modification to the design of the site through an
amended Master Plan/Final Development Plan shall occur consistent with development

standards for the PO/ I zoning district. Any modifications to the Master Plan/ Final
Development Plan after the effective date of this ordinance shall occur consistent with the
procedures and requirements set forth in Article 12 of the Land Development Code and shall
not require an amendment to this ordinance. Such amendment to the Master Plan/Final

Development Plan shall be treated through the same procedure for an amendment to a Final
Development Plan. 

Section II. That the zoning classification of the following described Property, being situated
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development ( PUD- PO/ I-Residential), as

defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

Legal Description: 

Lot 21 ( less the North 116 feet) and the North I/ 4 of Lot 27, Block J, Town of Apopka, 

as recorded in Plat Book A, Page 109, Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel I.D. No. 09- 21- 28- 0197- 10-211 ( 0. 136 +/- acres) 

67



ORDINANCE NO. 2525

PAGE 4

Begin at the Southeast corner of Lot 21, Block J, Town of Apopka, as recorded in Plat

Book A, Page 109, Public Records of Orange County, Florida; run thence Westerly
along the South line of said Lot 21 for a Distance of 85. 73 feet; run thence North parallel
with the East line of Lot 21 for a distance of 70. 00 feet; run Thence Easterly parallel
with the South line of Lot 21 for a distance of 85. 73 feet to the East line of Lot 21; run

Thence South along said line for a distance of 70. 00 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Parcel I.D. No. 09- 21- 28- 0197- 10- 213 ( 0. 383 +/- acres) 

Combined acreage: 0. 52 +/- acre

Section III. That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the
City of Apopka, Florida. 

Section IV. That the Community Development Director, or the Director' s designee, is hereby
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to
include said designation. 

Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to
be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force
or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

Section VI. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section VII. That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2524. 

READ FIRST TIME: November 2, 2016

READ SECOND TIME

AND ADOPTED: member 16, 2016

1

ATTEST: 

Mmal-51, • 

M a` R -M
DULY ADVERTISED: September 30, 2016

November 4, 2016

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79


	Top
	1. 07-19-17 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES  6/21/17
	06-21-17 Draft.pdf

	1. 07-19-17 - CC - Presentation - PD Basketball Competition
	2. 07-19-17 - CC - Presentation - PD Walk Like MADD Team Recognition
	1. 07-19-17 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Ocoee Apopka Rd Reclaimed Water Main Installation
	Ocoee Apopka Rd Reclaimed Water Main Staff Report.docx

	2. 07-19-17 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Ocoee Apopka Rd Reclaimed Water Main Pipe Purchase
	Ocoee Apopka Reclaimed Water Main Project Pipe Purchase.docx

	1. 07-19-17 - CC - Business - Public Services - Waste Management Recycling Processing Agreement
	PS - Waste Management Recycling Processing Agreement Staff Report.docx

	2. 07-19-17 - CC - Business Agenda - PS - WRF Clarifier Emergency Repairs
	PS - Wastewater Clarifier Emergency Repairs Staff Report.pdf

	3. 07-19-17 - CC - Business - PS: FD Roof
	PS - Staff Report FD 1 Roof (2).docx
	Apopka Fire Admin &amp; EOC_RAMP.pdf

	4. 07-19-17 - CC - Business - RA Settlement Item 
	Glenn - RA Settlement Staff Report.docx
	RA - Contingent Mediated Settlement Agreement.pdf
	RA - Mutual Release.pdf

	5. 07-19-17 - CC - Business - Evaluation &amp; Appraisal Report 2017 - Comp Plan
	1 EAR 2017 CC 7 19 17.pdf

	1. 07-19-17 - CC - Ordinance - Ord. #2525 - Insubstantial Change to PUD Development Condition D.4. - Apopka Holdings LLC
	1 Apopka Holdings LLC -Insubstantial Amendment  ZON - CC 07-19-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2525 - Apopka Holding LLC ZON.pdf
	3 Apopka Holdings LLC - Central Florida Recovery Center Plans - 08 05 16.pdf
	4 Central Fla Recovery Centers Landscape Plan.pdf

	Bottom

